
Whisky distilling, blending & 
bottling in South 

Queensferry



Glenforth Distillery

Photo courtesy of Queensferry History Group



Glenforth Distillery

• 'A large mass of buildings at the end of Gote Lane (now Hillwood 
Place) near the harbour, established in 1828 by the Glenforth 
Distillery Co. It manufactures from 2,00 to 2,500 gallons weekly and 
gives constant employement to 13 men. It is the property of Mr R 
Wyld of Gilston, county of Fife.

• Ordnance Survey Name Book, 1856

Canmore



James Wyld, Merchant Leith
1776 – 1860

William Wyld
1785 - 1842

Robert Stodart Wyld
1808 - 1893

Image: National Galleries of Scotland

Memoir of James Wyld of Gilston
By Robert Stodard Wyld 1889



View of the 
harbour head 
in 19th

Century

Watercolour 
by Charles 
Bryden



Glenforth Distillery

‘GLENFORTH (also QUEENSFERRY), SOUTH 
QUEENSFERRY, WEST LOTHIAN, Glenforth Distillery Co. 
1843 – 63 when diss., purchased by John Steward & 
Co. Kirkliston, who continued to use the firm’s name 
until 1867.’

The Scotch Whisky Industry Record
H. Charles Craig 1994



King George 1V

Landing at Leith

By Alexander Carse - 'The 
Landing of George IVth at 
Leith', painting in Leith 
Town Hall, Public Domain, 
https://commons.wikimedi
a.org/w/index.php?curid=2
1576751

a reigning monarch 
to Scotland in 
nearly two 
centuries.

The visit of King 
George IV to 
Scotland in 1822 
was the first visit of



King George 1V 
arriving at Hopetoun 
House 1822

Denis Dighton - scan from 
The King's Jaunt, John 
Prebble, Birlinn Limited, 
Edinburgh 2000



1823 - King George IV was 
the monarch to formally 
pass the Excise Act which 
introduced the first 
licences to legally distil 
whisky in Scotland

Visit stage 
managed by Sir 
Walter Scott



John Stewart & Co
‘KIRKLISTON (also LAMBSMILN), WEST LOTHIAN 
…sold to John Stewart & Co. 1855; diss. 1874; 
converted to Distillery operating with pot stills 
only 1851, but a Coffey still was installed later, 
probably by John Stewart & Co. though pot-still 
whisky was still made 1880s. Closed 1920, 
subsequently a malt extract factory and 
maltings for the Distillers Co. (Malt Products) 
Ltd. Closed 1988 and sold to Brewing Products 
UK Ltd.’

Images: courtesy of potstill.org



John Stewart & Co

Valuation Roll  1876/7
John Stewart & Co owned a Bonded 
Warehouse on “The Loan, West 
Suburbs” - £25 pa 



Distillers Company – formed in 1877

Minutes of Meeting of Directors of DCL 2nd March 1887 – Minute Bk. 
No. 5, p107

‘A letter was read from Mr Stewart, Kirkliston, reporting that in view of 
the increase to be expected in the bottling and export trade, the 
bottling accommodation at Queensferry will require to be increased, 
and suggesting that the Company should purchase a small piece of land 
at the back of the present Bottling warehouse whereon to build an 
addition. After consideration the Secretary was requested to visit 
Queensferry and inspect the land and report to the next meeting.’



Minutes of Meeting of Directors of DCL 9th March 1887 – Minute Bk. 
No. 5, p112

‘The Secretary reported that he had inspected the piece of ground at 
South Queensferry which Mr. Stewart proposed should be purchased by 
the Company for the purpose of enlarging the Company’s present 
bottling warehouse there, and he considered it to be suitable and 
convenient for the purpose required. After consideration, the Board 
authorised Mr. Stewart to offer to the extent of £200 for the piece of 
ground, free of feu duty.’



Distillers Company – formed in 1877

Valuation Roll 1894/5

Distillers Coy Scotland own a Bonded 
Warehouse, Bottling & Offices on The Loan 
- £100 pa

Valuation Roll 1920/1
Distillers Coy Scotland own a Bonded 
Warehouse, Bottling & Offices on the Loan
- £715 pa
- Henry Staples, Manager

Ordnance Survey Map 1895



Ordnance 
Survey 
Map 1948



Image courtesy of Queensferry Museum



Plant Fire
24 April 1949

Further fire on 
17 November
1965

Photo courtesy of 
Queensferry History 
Group

“The second fire actually took place on 17 November 1965. It 
was my 21 birthday. I didn't see my dad (Jim Ward) that day as 
he was one of the distillery's volunteer firemen and he didn't 
get home until the next day”. Allison Padmore (Ward).



King George 1V Whisky

King George IV Blended Scotch Whisky

The story behind the brand name of King George IV is 

based on King George IV’s visit to Edinburgh in 

1822, which was the first by a reigning monarch in 200 

years. 

At the end of his visit he set sail in his yacht, the ‘Royal 

George’ from Port Edgar in the Royal Burgh of South 

Queensferry.



King George 1V Whisky

c.1880 – King George IV brand was exported for the first 
time to New Zealand

1880s - King George IV Old Scotch Whisky was registered 
by Distillers Company Ltd (formed in 1877)

1924 – Distillers Agency Ltd (DAL) formed as a separate 
company to take over blending & exporting

1920s – DAL took over Blending & Bottling plant at South 
Queensferry and extended plant

1960’s



Blending 
Director

Tom McDonald
Still from Huntley Archives
Film King George 1V 1960’s



Leslie Scott.  Photo of display in Queensferry museum



Production 
Director

Joe Munro pictured (took over from Mr Alexander). Andrew 
Brown had responsibility for day to day running of the Plant
Still from Huntley Archives
Film King George 1V 1960’s



Cooperage

This was the 2nd of 3 Cooperages and was under the canteen & 

next to where the wooden cases were made.  



Shaving a barrel using a Plucker – Bob McGuigan
Still from Huntley Archives
Film King George 1V 1960’s



Possibly Ian Andrews
Still from Huntley Archives
Film King George 1V 1960’s



Photo courtesy of 
Arnott Robertson

Coopers Night Out
Prizegiving of Darts 
Competition
c.1965

Stags Head



Back row left to right: Bob McGuigan, Alec Robertson, John 
Stevenson, Adam Watson, George Thompson, James Porteous, 
Peter Scott.  
Middle row left to right:  Donald Paterson, William Wright, 
Peter Beuchars, Ian Andrews, Eric Smith, George Summers, 
Front Row left to right: Tom Marshall, Jackie Small, Arnott 
Robertson, Willie Fleming.
Bill Watson took the photo.

Bob McGuigan had a 
win on the football 
pools and bought a 
bungalow in Blackhall 
for £500 – he was 
known as ‘Blackhall 
Bob’. 

Arnott Robertson started 

work as an apprentice 

Cooper at King George 1V 

plant in April 1953 when it 

reopened following the 

1949 fire.  
The first cooperage 

was where East Coast 

Tyres is now.  The 2nd

cooperage had blue 

doors, and the 3rd

cooperage was where 

the railway yard was.  

Stories & Photo courtesy of Bill 
Watson & Arnott Robertson



Whisky 
blended in 
vats then 
filled in 
barrels









Testing for 
Proof 
Strength



Note the 
different overall 
colours.  What 
did these 
signify?

Bottling



Labelling & 
Wrapping





Image courtesy of 
Queensferry Museum

No personal protective 
equipment in those 
days!

Isobel Kerr in the 
foreground – still 
resident in Queensferry



VAT 69 Bottling

VAT 69 Bottling Plant - 1972



Photo courtesy of Diageo archive

Packaging 
Hall c.1970

Queensferry 
or Leith?



Despatch



House of Sanderson

- 1882 William Sanderson creates VAT 69
- VAT 69 hugely successful
- 3 Royal Warrants & Queen’s Award for 

export
- 1937 Sanderson taken over by DCL
- 1969 VAT 69 Blending & Bottling 

transferred to South Queensferry



Photo courtesy of Diageo archive

Whisky 
arriving 
c.1960

Leith



Photo courtesy of Diageo archive

Pageant

Leith



Tank being removed 
from VAT 69 building. 
Late 60’s
Harry Kelly, 
Photographer.

This building was the 
original Cooperage & 
later became a “duty 
paid” store.

Photo courtesy of 
Queensferry History 
Group



The plant dominated the 
Queensferry skyline.
Ultimately the design 
proved to be inefficient 
for modern blending & 
bottling



Closure & Demolition of VAT 69 plant - 1984



Ian Andrews, joined 
King George 1V 
Distillery in 1959.  
When the plant 
closed he set up his 
own business as a 
specialist Cooper.

Examples here are 
mini barrels 
presented by 
Dalmeny Estate Golf 
Club.



Ian 
Andrews 
Receiving 
an award 
from Earl 
of Wessex



VAT 69 as a global brand

• This venerable 19th century blend accompanied Shackleton to the 
South Pole and was once the world’s 10th best-selling whisky.

https://scotchwhisky.com/whiskypedia/2547/vat-69/

https://scotchwhisky.com/whiskypedia/2547/vat-69/


Image courtesy of Diageo archive





VAT 69 bottle evolution 1936 - 2010

Image courtesy of Diageo archive



1920 Flyer – promoting 
VAT 69 in India

Image courtesy of Diageo archive



Image courtesy 
of Diageo 
archive



‘Shapes that recall’ 
Advertising Campaign
1934

Image courtesy of Diageo archive



‘Shapes that recall’ 
Advertising Campaign

London Illustrated News 
9 March 1935

Photo courtesy of Diageo archive



1940 – promoting VAT 69 
in USA

Photo courtesy of Diageo archive



“Quality Tells”
1954

Photo courtesy of Diageo archive



Advert – Illustrated 
London News
15 December 1956

Photo courtesy of Diageo archive



“Band of 
Brothers”
Rejuvenates 
VAT 69 in 
2001



Print Advertising - India

These ads were strategically placed 
next to articles on current 
phenomenons in various magazines 
across the country and provided a 
manly, smart and funny, 'VAT MAN' 
Solution to the relative questions.

2012 -





So what does VAT 69 taste like?



Jim Murray’s Whisky Bible (2014)

VAT 69

“Has thickened up in style: weightier, 
more macho, much more to say and a 
long way off that old lightweight. A 
little cleaning up wouldn’t go amiss”.

Overall score 84.5 – n20 t22.5 f23 b21.5

A good whisky – worth trying
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